
Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2009

Page 1

The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
was held on December 7, 2009 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas,
New Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:

Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Wayne Mazurek
Councilmember Glenn Douglass

Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare
Mayor Michael Beck

Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor, and Kathleen McPherson, Manager

Proclamation - Supporting the Over the Limit Under Arrest  2009 Year End Statewide Crackdown

Work Session 

Friends of the Fishing Creek School Plan for the Renovation & Restoration of the School 
Mayor Beck said they were going to start the meeting with a discussion on the Fishing Creek School.  He said it was
a gem in the Township.  He turned the discussion over to Norris Clark, a member of the Friends of the Fishing Creek
School to explain the plans for the school.
Mr. Clark said the school was nestled between 2 pizza stores.  He said he had hopes and dreams for the property
and said it was a national historic landmark.  
Mr. Clark introduced the Friends of the Fishing Creek School, he mentioned some of the  advisory members - Mayor
Beck, Manager McPherson, Colleen Crippen, Tony Monzo and John Louderback who had given him a lot of help.
He said at the 2nd board meeting they set a presentation and he read their mission statement.  He said they
envisioned ideas for public uses of the school and went over a list of ideas they had.  The Board was dedicated to
seeing the building stabilized and mentioned it needed a new roof.  
Mr. Clark said the school buses had put the school out of business.  He wanted to see the building restored to its
original state.  He said the lease from the State mandated the use for recreation, conservation and historic use.  He
said the Friends of the Fishing Creek School plans were in keeping with the lease terms.  He also reviewed the
master plan as it pertained  to the use.  He said the capital budget had $20,000 in for the school, the estimate for the
roof was $24,000.00.
Mr. Clark said the request to Council was to allow the building to be opened,  the Friend of Fishing Creek School to
work with the Recreation Department for different uses, the Township to fix the roof and allow Colleen Crippen to
search for grants for the building.  He thanked Tony Monzo for his help with establishing their tax status and Mr.
Clark had plans of setting a goal of $25,000.00 in fund raising.  He said they would also start a membership drive of
$10.00 per year.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2009

Page 2

Jay Whitmoyer said he was the VP of the Friends of Fishing Creek School as well as the President of the CM Beach
Property Owners Association and he was asked to see if there had been community support for this project.  He
asked the people in attendance to stand if they supported the school.  
Mr. Clark said he also reached out to the MAC for any advice they may have to offer.  He was also getting input from
Dr. & Annie Salvatore.
Councilmember Conrad said the Township needed historical and cultural events in the community.
Councilmember Mazurek said it was a terrific idea and offered his help.  He said maybe the wood shop from the high
school could also help.
Councilmember Douglass said he was also in favor of the project and to move on with it.
Deputy Mayor Lare said to move forward also.
Mayor Beck said it was a small piece of the puzzle, when you looked at it and thought of all the possibil ities.  He
mentioned the work along Bayshore Road with the Chamber of Commerce and Stockton College it was part of
creating a community and felt there would be many volunteers.
Mayor Beck said a gazebo could be purchased for outdoor concerts and there were many other things that could
take place at the Fishing Creek School.  He said it was an incredible step for the Township and thanked everyone
involved with the project.

Correspondence from Vince Orlando - Re: Redwood Avenue Beach Project
Steven Filippone of Engineering Design Associates, presented a map showing 3 residential properties at Redwood
& Beechwood Avenues.  He said over the past few weeks there had been a lot of erosion and a great amount of the
dune had been lost.  He said the residents wanted to replenish the dune in the Township Right of Way.  
Mr. Filippone said the residents would like to construct a bulkhead 175 feet inland.  The residents needed Township
approval since it was in the right of way, there would be no cost to the Township and they needed a resolution from
the Township in order to apply to the DEP.
Judy Swope said she had lived there for 6 years and had watched the tides and dunes come and go.  She noticed in
the last year she had lost 4 or 5 feet of property.  She said the last storm she lost 14 feet, she said the DEP did
declare the house was in an emergent situation.  
Mrs. Swope said only a 1 ½ foot cable held the electrical pole which happened to have a transformer on it.
Richard Fallon of 21 Redwood Avenue said he had been at his present address for 10 years and this past storm was
the worse storm he had seen.  He said they were not asking for aid just looking for the Township approval.  
Mr. Filippone said a resolution was needed from the Township to proceed. 
Solicitor Monzo asked if all the construction would be on Beechwood Avenue.
Mr. Filippone said  �yes �. 
Solicitor Monzo said the Township could vacate the end of Beechwood Avenue.
Mr. Filippone said maybe a Hold Harmless Agreement was needed.
Solicitor Monzo said the resolution would give the  �ok � to go for the permit.
Councilmember Conrad asked if it would cause erosion to the other neighbors property.
Mr. Filippone said  �no �.
Councilmember Mazurek and Councilmember Douglass said to move ahead with it.
Mayor Beck again verified there would be no cost to the Township.  He asked if Bill Galestok, Planning Director
could take a look at it and then schedule it for the next meeting.
Manager McPherson said she would meet with the residents tomorrow.

Council Review of Consent & Regular Agenda Items
Councilmember Douglass asked if Resolution #2009-306 could be moved to the regular agenda.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2009

Page 3

Public Questions/Comments on Consent Agenda Items
Fred Long of Cold Spring asked if Ordinance #2009-14 would be available on the website?
Manager McPherson said the ordinance change was to add one title.
Lois Grimes of Frances Avenue asked for clarification of Resolution #2009-313 regarding the Memorandum of
Understanding.
Solicitor Monzo explained one condition to get the permit was to get permission from the NJ Land Trust to maintain
the pipes.  He said there were procedures to follow and they came up with the memorandum of understanding so
the permits could be issued.

Consent Agenda

Approval of Minutes November 16, 2009
Res. #2009-299, Resolution Reaffirming the Review and Final Approval of the Application and Purchase of

the Development Easement on Rossi/Reichle Farm (tabled at Nov. 16 mtg) 
Res. #2009-303 Payment of Vouchers, $448,040.76
Res. #2009-304 A Resolution Requesting Release of Revegetation and Restoration Guarantee for Dune

Site Plan; Block 390, Lot 1, Escrow #P09-02-03
Res. #2009-305 Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter159 (Over

Limit Under Arrest, Additional. $5000)
Res. #2009-307 Renewal of Junk Yard License for Macum Corporation for the Year 2010
Res. #2009-308 Renewal of Trailer Park  Licenses for the Year 2010 (Annual renewal of licenses)
Res. #2009-309   Authorization for Refund of Taxes (3 properties - overpayments & wrong property paid)
Res. #2009-310, Authorization for Waiver of Township Application, Permit and License Fees for

Celebration Community Church (Alternate Destination, center for youth activities and
tutoring relocating to Breakwater Plaza)

Res. #2009-311, Transfer of 2009 Appropriations, $57,200 (from Rec. & Tipping Fees to Assessor,
Engineering, DPW  & Unemployment)

Res. #2009-312, Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter159
(Additional $136.80 for Art Grant )

Res. #2009-313, A Resolution of the Township of Lower Approving a Memorandum of Understanding with
New Jersey Natural Lands Trust (Agreement needed for Francis Avenue drainage
project)

Res. #2009-314, Bid Acceptance and Contract Award for 2010 Peterbilt  Chassis with Dual Tailgate Rear
Loader or Equal (Hunter Jersey Peterbilt, $209,450)

Res. #2009-315, Rejection of Bid for 2010 Mack Chassis with Dual Tailgate Rear Loader or Equal (1 bid
rec �d. over budget)

Ord. #2009-14, An Ordinance Amending Ordinance #2009-08, Salary & Benefit Ordinance for the
Township of Lower, 1st rdg.  (2nd rdg. Dec. 21, 2009)

Councilmember Mazurek  motioned to adopt the consent agenda,  seconded by Councilmember Conrad.   The
consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember
Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �yes �.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2009

Page 4

Regular Agenda

Res. #2009-306 Certification of Lot Clearing Charges to the Tax Collector (4 properties)
Councilmember Conrad  motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek.  The consent
agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �abstain �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck,  �yes �.

Res. #2009-316, Resolution Approving Amendment to the Lower Township Office Worker �s Association,
 Local #3779 Agreement for the years 2006 through 2010 (Adding title of Senior Building Service Worker)
Councilmember Douglass  motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Conrad.   The consent
agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �abstain �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck,  �yes �.

Res. #2009-317, Payment of Vouchers, $425.00 
Councilmember Douglass  motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek.  The consent
agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck,  �yes �.

Administrative Reports
Personnel Action Report 
October Report - CFO & Municipal Judge, Police

Council Comments
Councilmember Conrad congratulated the Lower Township Chamber of Commerce for a job well done.  He said the
Hospitality Night ran by the Chamber was a great event and well attended.  He said the LCMR and RMT Bands did a
good job in the West Cape May Parade on Sunday.  He mentioned the Green Fair and said he was getting more
people interested.  He said at the League of Municipalities there was a lot of green technology and it was very
interesting.  
Councilmember Conrad read some of the League Resolutions he thought may be of interest to the public.
Councilmember Douglass commended the Lower Township Chamber of Commerce for Hospitality Night, he said it
was very nice and also the Lower Township Rotary for the Tree Lighting Ceremony.  
Deputy Mayor Lare said the work on the new gym floor would be starting on December 10th and would be completed
by December 28th.  He said the Lower Township MUA received their water extension permit and read the streets that
were planned for work.  He said the MUA was applying for additional funding to extend water to Town Bank and
other areas.  
Mayor Beck said the Tree Lighting and Hospitality Night were awesome events.  He announced the trash collection
schedule for the holiday.  He mentioned the Rotary Christmas Parade was on Dec. 12th, the Ferry Merry Christmas
on Dec. 19th and the Red Cross Blood Drive at Township Hall on Dec. 28th from 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.

Public Comments

Hunting off of Shirley Avenue
Kelly Swartz of Shirley Avenue said at the end of her street was the Parkway.  She said she saw someone dropped
off to hunt with a cross bow.  She felt to hunt there was to close to a  residential area  and people could get hunt. 
She did call the police and was told nothing could be done since it wasn �t posted.  She said she felt it was a



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - December 7, 2009

Page 5

dangerous situation.
Manager McPherson said she would look into it and asked Ms. Swartz to give her phone number after the meeting
so she could follow up on the matter.

Bids for Outfall Pipe Work
Joe Winters of Florida Avenue asked if this meant the Township could go out to bid for the work on the outfall pipes?
Manager McPherson said she hoped to award the bid in January and start.
Mr. Winters said he was asking for a date.
Solicitor Monzo said the permits were approved.  He said the bids were to be received in December and awarded in
January.  He said once the contract was signed it should be done by May 1st.  

Ponder Lodge
Joe Winters asked if Stockton was supplying security for Ponder Lodge and if they weren �t they should be.
Manager McPherson said she would check, the Township wasn �t providing security the police were just patrolling the
area.

State Aid
Janet Pitts asked if the Township was one of the towns that lost the December payment from the State.
Manager McPherson said it was short $16,000.00.
Mayor Beck said it wasn �t good news financially; it was going to be a tough month ahead.

Unsightly Property
Sarah Christie of Hudson Avenue thanked Manager McPherson and Walt Fiore from Code Enforcement for their
help with the person collecting all the junk in her neighborhood.  She did say it was still going on.

 Res. #2009-318, A Resolution Providing for a Meeting Not Open to the Pubic in Accordance with the
 Provisions of the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12. 
Councilmember Conrad  motioned to adopt the ordinance, seconded by Councilmember Douglass.  The resolution
was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck   �yes �.

Council returned to open session and there being no further comment, Councilmember Mazurek  motioned to
adjourn the meeting, seconded by Councilmember Douglass,   the meeting unanimously adjourned by verbal  �ayes �
at 9:03 p.m.

__________________________ __________________________
           Mayor Township Clerk

Approved: December 21, 2009


